
 

April 17, 2017 
 

The East Lampeter Township Board of Supervisors met on Monday, April 17, 2017, at  
7:30 pm. at the East Lampeter Township Office: 2250 Old Philadelphia Pike, Lancaster, PA 
17602. The meeting was called to order by Mr. Dave Buckwalter, Chairman. In addition to  
Mr. Buckwalter, supervisors present were: Mr. Ethan Demme, Mr. Glenn Eberly, Mr. John 
Blowers and Mr. Corey Meyer.  Also present was Mr. Ralph Hutchison, Township Manager. 
 
The following persons signed in as being present in the audience: 
 
Lynn Commero, representing Lancaster Newspapers 
Brian Masterson, Regester Associates, representing Dan Fisher 
Charlie Thomas, representing East Lampeter Township 
Chief John Bowman, representing East Lampeter Township 
John Brooks, representing East Lampeter Township 
Mark McPhail, representing East Lampeter Township 
Dennis Miller, representing East Lampeter Township 
Stephanie Armpreister, 125 Lancaster Avenue, Strasburg, representing Lancaster Farmland Trust 
Dan Miller, 12 Miller Road, Akron, 
Doug Glick, 316 Mill Creek Road 
Jeff Cutler, PO Box 2806, Tax Collector 
 
Approval of the Minutes of the Monday, April 3, 2017 Regular Meeting 
 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if there were any additions or corrections regarding the minutes of 
the April 3, 2017 regular meeting as prepared.   Mr. Blowers stated that under Other Business 
item d states Chairman Blowers and it should be changed to Chairman Buckwalter. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Demme to dispense with the reading of the minutes and approve the 
minutes as corrected.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by a vote of four in 
favor and one abstaining (Mr. Blowers was absent from the April 3, 2017 meeting.) 
 
Approval of Bills 
 
Chairman Buckwalter presented the bills to be paid from various funds for the total amount of 
$76,065.02.  He discussed one of the larger items including a payment in the amount of $15,086.43 
to Witmer Public Safety Group Inc. for uniforms, vest, & holsters for newly hired officers. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Demme and seconded by Mr. Meyer to approve the payment of the 
bills as listed in the amount of $76,065.02.  The motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Recognition of Departmental Teamwork 
 
Chief Bowman stated that during the March 14th snowstorm the Police Department was 
dispatched to a cardiac arrest. He stated that Larry Frankford of the Public Works Department 
was monitoring the dispatch and broadcasted the location to other members of the Public Works 



 

Department.  He stated that Dwight Hershey was in the area of the dispatch and plowed a route 
to allow the police and emergency responder’s access to the home.  Chief Bowman expressed his 
appreciation to the Public Works Department for their service to the Township.   
 
Mr. Charlie Thomas, Public Works Director, also expressed his appreciation for all the work the 
Public Works Department does for the Township.  He introduced Mr. John Brooks, Road 
Superintendent and Public Works employees Mr. Mark McPhail and Mr. Dennis Miller.   
 
Chairman Buckwalter thanked the Public Works Department for all the work they do throughout 
the Township.  Mr. Hutchison stated that this is one example where the Departments have 
worked together to serve the community and he appreciates their service to the Township.  
Mr. Thomas stated that they also have several officers that help with snow removal and they 
appreciate the assistance during snow events. The Board of Supervisors thanked both 
Departments for their service to the Township.  
 
Old Business 
 

a. Request for Financial Security Release – Smoketown Airport: 311 Airport Drive 
 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present. 
 
This agenda item was tabled until a future meeting. 
 

b. Request for Financial Security Reduction – Pinnacle Premier: 58 Pitney Road 
 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present. 
 
Mr. Buckwalter stated that in a letter from the Township engineer they are recommending a 
reduction in the amount of $26,663.45 leaving a remaining balance of $6,000.00.   
 
Mr. Demme made a motion to approve the request for financial security reduction in the amount 
of $26,663.45 leaving a remaining balance of $6,000.00 for Pinnacle Premier at 58 Pitney Road 
per the Township engineer’s letter.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 

c. Request for Financial Security Release – Fisher: 2655 Bachmantown Road 
 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  No one was present. 
 
Mr. Buckwalter stated that in a letter from the Township engineer they are recommending a full 
release of financial security in the amount of $13,580.00 leaving a remaining balance of $0. 
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve the request for financial security release in the amount of 
$13,580.00 leaving a remaining balance of $0 for Fisher at 2655 Bachmantown Road per the 
Township engineer’s letter.  Mr. Demme seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous 
voice vote. 



 

 
New Business 
 

a. Fisher Stormwater Management Plan #17-06: 2630 Old Philadelphia Pike 
 
Chairman Buckwalter asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. Brian Masterson 
was present. 
 
Mr. Masterson, of Regester Associates, stated that they prepared the Stormwater Plan for 2630 
Old Philadelphia Pike.  He stated that the applicant is proposing a dwelling addition, a deck, a 
horse barn and an additional driveway area.  He stated that they received Zoning Hearing Board 
approval for a variance on the lot size and side yard setback.  He stated that the Stormwater Plan 
is to have an infiltration bed at the rear of the house.  He stated that they are requesting waiver 
for the pipe size and a waiver for reduction in pipe cover.   
 
Mr. Blowers asked if the neighbors were aware of the project.  Mr. Hutchison stated that when 
the applicant went before the Zoning Hearing Board all the neighbors were notified of the 
hearing.  
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to conditionally approve the Fisher Stormwater Management Plan 
#17-06 for 2630 Old Philadelphia Pike subject to the David Miller Associates letter granting the 
two waivers.  Mr. Blowers seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Other Business 
 

a. Lancaster Farmland Trust Proposed Partnering Agreement 
 
Ms. Stephanie Armpreister, of Lancaster Farmland Trust, addressed the Board.  She presented a 
proposal on a public-private partnership to help the Township fulfill the regulatory requirements 
of the Chesapeake Bay Watershed.  She stated that Lancaster Farmland Trust has been working 
with the Township for about a year and a half providing a holistic approach to meet the 
Township’s MS4 requirements.  She stated that they visited 154 farms in the Township to assess 
compliance and completed a Map Shed baseline for MS4 purposes in the Conestoga and Mill 
Creek watersheds.  She stated that this showed that most farms had BMP’s in place but had no 
plans.  She reviewed the objectives of the proposal by stating they would provide farmer 
education and a recruitment workshop and work with 20 farms within the watersheds for 
development of agricultural erosion and sedimentation plans and manure management plans.  
She stated that they are proposing a cost share from the Township of $10,000.00 to provide for 
this program.  She stated that the farmers could apply for tax credits and if they are operating at a 
loss they can sell them to a private business.  Mr. Buckwalter asked about the tax credits. 
Mr. Eberly asked if the 20 farms have been selected. Ms. Armpreister stated that the targeted 
outreach would be within the Conestoga watershed because that is where the Township needs the 
most reductions but if they cannot get 20 farms they would move to the Mill Creek watershed.   
Mr. Blowers stated that the workshop is slated for July.  Ms. Armpreister stated that the 
workshop would explain to the farmers why they need a plan and why it is important to have a 
plan.  Mr. Hutchison stated that a lot of the farmers feel more comfortable dealing with Lancaster 



 

Farmland Trust than the Township so he thinks it’s a benefit to partner with them to provide the 
program.  Mr. Eberly asked if this is a budgeted item. Mr. Hutchison replies it will probably 
come out of Capital Reserve. 
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to approve the Lancaster Farmland Trust proposal for Agricultural 
Erosion & Sedimentation and Nutrient Management plans partnering agreement.  Mr. Blowers 
seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

b. Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Presentation 
 
Mr. Hutchison made the presentation to the Board regarding the Tax Increment Financing (TIF).  
He stated that the Board of Supervisors approved the creation of the Industrial & Commercial 
Development Authority (ICDA) earlier this year.  He stated that one of the ideas the ICDA 
looked at is creating a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) program as a way to help generate funds 
to implement the Route 30 Streetscape Plan.  He stated that the ICDA met on April 10, 2017 and 
authorized the presentations to the taxing authorities in the Township which included the Board 
of Supervisors, the School District and the County Commissioners.   
 
He reviewed the Route 30 Streetscape Plan goals including better serve local residents & 
corridor uses with safety, convenience and jobs, draw new & returning visitors to the destination 
tourism-shopping area, retain existing businesses/jobs and attract new businesses/jobs, encourage 
real estate development/redevelopment consistent with these goals, and preserve and grow East 
Lampeter Township’s commercial property tax base.  He stated that the estimated cost is $218 
million and the idea is to break it down into smaller pieces and the timing is dependent upon 
funding opportunities from multiple sources.   
 
He reviewed what a TIF is by stating that it is authorized by an act that was passed in 1990 (Act 
1990-113).  He stated that it is driven by the value added in the private commercial real estate 
value and would segregate a percentage of incremental real estate taxes for up to 20 years. He 
explained that a baseline ensures that no current taxes are taken from East Lampeter Township 
and only a portion of taxes above the baseline is placed in the TIF Fund.  He stated that the 
Board of Supervisors determines the amount of the Township’s level of participation and after 
the TIF ends, East Lampeter Township receives 100% of incremental tax revenues.  He stated 
that this TIF is district-based debt-free TIF and 100% used for public infrastructure.   
 
He reviewed why the Township is using a TIF plan by stating that all TIF funds would be 
utilized to help implement the Route 30 Streetscape Plan.  He stated that the TIF plan funds 
public infrastructure on debt-free pay-as-you-go method from property taxes generated on new 
private improvements.  He stated that this is one of several programs funding the Streetscape 
Plan and that the TIF funding matches the increased property values of the corridor.   
 
He reviewed how the TIF would benefit the Township including improving public safety, 
enhancing the property tax base, growing non-property tax revenues without raising tax rates, 
improving the business climate along the corridor and advancing environmental and health 
benefits.  He showed examples of other municipalities in the state that have used TIFs and their 
participation levels. 



 

He reviewed examples of the impact of the Township’s TIF participation including the 
redevelopment of Lancaster Host, the redevelopment of Arigato Japanese Restaurant, and the 
redevelopment property with $10 million of improvements. 
 
He stated that the law requires that certain criteria be meet in order to have a TIF.  He stated that 
having a faulty street layout, inadequate planning, and economically undesirable uses are some 
of the qualifying criteria’s and that the courts give wide discretion to localities in determining 
qualifications.  He stated that other requirements for a TIF are all properties in the TIF need to be 
contiguous and the total taxable assessed values of all the properties included in the TIF can’t be 
more than 10% of the total taxable assessed values of the Township.    
 
He reviewed the TIF funding options by stating that it would be a pay as you go with the tax 
increments placed in the fund to pay current costs as incurred. He reviewed the advantages of 
debt-free financing including the earnings on the funds are not subject to federal tax arbitrage 
rules, avoids debt costs, avoids delays with most debt issuances and more funds utilized for 
infrastructure costs. 
 
He reviewed the TIF enactment process including this presentation, appoint designate, planning 
meeting with representatives, ICDA authority submits recommendations, Township Planning 
Commission makes recommendation of TIF District meeting the TIF Criteria, the ICDA 
authority submits the TIF project to the Supervisors, the County Commissioners and the School 
District, the Governing Boards adopt participation Resolutions, a public hearing is held after a 30 
day notice, the Supervisors can adopt Ordinance three weeks after public hearing, and any 
amendments to the TIF Project Plan goes through the same process. 
 
Mr. Meyer pointed out that there would be zero impact to the property owners.  Mr. Hutchison 
stated that the property owners would pay the same amount of tax with or without the TIF the 
difference being that the incremental amount would get separated out.   
 
Mr. Ben King asked if there were any estimates of how much revenue would be brought into the 
Township for tourism improvement. Mr. Hutchison answered that there have been no estimates 
of what the increased value might be but the belief is that if we invest the money in the 
Streetscape Plan it will improve the atmosphere and improve tourism. Mr. Blowers stated that 
the Township needs to make the investment to improve the corridor. 
 

c. Resolution to Appoint a Representative to Meet with ELICDA re: TIF Plan 
 
Mr. Blowers stated that the Board of Supervisors will appoint a representative, the ICDA will 
appoint a representative, the County Commissioners hopefully will appoint a representative and 
the School District hopefully will appoint a representative to meet as a planning committee.  
Mr. Demme stated that it would help to have a participation level for the presentation.   
Mr. Buckwalter stated that the hope is that there would be a 100% participation level.  The Board 
discussed the assessed values of the corridor and whether improvements will affect those values. 
 



 

Mr. Demme made a motion to approve the Resolution to appoint Mr. Ralph Hutchison, 
Township Manger as the representative regarding the TIF Plan.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion 
and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution #2017-15 
 

d. Exoneration of Tax Claims Incorrectly Submitted to Tax Claim Bureau 
 
Chairman Buckwalter stated that the Township was notified by Mr. Brian Hurter, Lancaster 
County Controller, regarding properties that were erroneously sent to the Tax Claim Bureau.   
Mr. Hutchison stated that currently there are 8 properties but there may be more in the future.   
 
Mr. Demme made a motion to approve the exoneration of tax claims incorrectly submitted to the 
Tax Claim Bureau.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Mr. Dan Miller, Akron, is representing his daughter who lives at a 353 Sunlite Circle.  He stated 
that damage was done to the road from cutting down a tree that was damaged during a storm.  He 
stated that his daughter has made attempts to get the road repaired but was told that the 
milling/resurfacing has to be done on back to back days.  Mr. Hutchison thanked Mr. Miller for 
bringing this to the Board’s attention and that he will follow up on his concern. 
 
Adjournment 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Eberly and seconded by Mr. Demme to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. The next regularly scheduled meeting is to be 
held on Monday, May 8, 2017 beginning at 7:30 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Ralph Hutchison 




































